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Board of Governons of the Federal Resewe System

Annual Report of Holding Companies-FR Y-6
lt4AR 16 2017

NIC Ui\iIT

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section s(cXlXA) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. S 18aa(c)(1)(A)); sections 8(a)
and 13(a) of the lnternational Banking Act (12 U.S.C. SS 3106(a)
and 3108(a)); sections 11(a)(1), 25, and 25A of the Federal
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. SS 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); and sec-
tions 113, 165, 312, 618, and 809 ofthe Dodd-FrankAct (12 U.S C.

SS 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(c)(1), and 5468(bX1)). Return to the
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of
copies specified.

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
nies, top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter-
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require-
ments of and is not treated as a qualifling foreign banking orga-
nization under Section 211 .23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. S
211 .23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon-
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond
to, an information collection unless it displays a currently valid
OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Repod of Holding Companies must be signed by
one director of the toptier holding company. This individual should
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. ln the event
that the top{ier holding company does not have an individual who is
a senior offlcial and is also a director, the chairman of the board must
sign the report. lf the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General lnstructions for the
authorized individual who must sign the report.

t,Tim Gilles
Name of the Holding Company OiIector and Official

President
Tit e ot the Holding Company Director and Official

attest that lhe Annual Repoft of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and conect to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

Wth respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
repoft, the Reporter cerlifies thal it has the authoity to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Repofter also ceriifies
that it has lhe authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserue may in the absence of a request for

accordance with the Board's

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end):

December 31,2016
Month/Day/Year

nla
Reporte/s Legal Entity ldentifier (LEl) (2G-Character LEI Code)

Reporteds Name, Street, and Mailing Address

Texas Heritaoe Bancshares. lnc
Legal Tlte of Holding Company

P.O. Box 340
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Slreet / P.O Box

Hondo TX 7886'1
City

1 1 12 18th Street
Zip Code

Physical Location (if difierent from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:
Olen Thompson CFO
Name Title

830426-3355
Area Code / Phone Number / Enension

State

co nf ide nti a I tre atm e nt
"Rules Regading A lnformation," 12 C.F.R. Paft 261 830-426-7272
that the Reporter and consent to public release of all Area code / FAx Number

details individual. olen@myhnb.com
E-mail Address

Signature of Direclor and Ofiicial nla
03t1412017 Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Date of Signature

For holding companies 0!a! registered with the SEt-
lndicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:

E is included with the FR Y-6 report

E will be sent under separate cover

fl is not prepared

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RSSD ID
c.l.

icq \qq I

Ofiice of Management and Budgel. Papenirork Reduclion Proiecl (710G0297). V\Ashington. DC 20503 1212}16

0=No

1=YeB 0
ls confidential treatment requested for any portion
of this report submission?...
ln accordance with the General lnstructions for this report
(check only one),

1. a letter justifying this request is being provided along
with the report ..........

2. a letterjustifying this request has been provided
separately.....

NOTE: lnformation for which confidential treatment is being
lgquested must be provided separately and labeled
as "confidential."



Trexasr t{emitag€ iBancshares, lnc.
a nd Affi liated'Co rnpan ies

tllilondo,:lexas

Fiscal Yea,r Ending D.mernber 31,2015

10w6

a llo antflty in th,e organhation has:a LEl..

Shareholders

Texas tleritgge-, Bo nsslilarqg, I nc.
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Incoipordted ill Texas
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Nationa[ Bank

Flondb, Texas
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FORH FR Y.6

oECEuEER 31,2016

Report ltem 4: Directors fficers

3-b 3-e 4-c1 ? 3-a 1-a 4-b

th,ald6, T)( USA

lrflko lv0lq

Hondo. I( U8{

James Baden

Hondo, D( US

Tim Gil6
Hmdo, T( USA

Reagan Hosul lrrsslment8 R8nd€r DheEtor

San Anlonh, IX, US
D[Ector- Horxlo N&nal Bark

Dlmc{orlChCrmaG }lonrb Natooal Bank

DiraclDr- l-londo NatidEl Benk

OltBclor- Hon(b Ni[ond Bank

Difrdor- Hondo l.lstlmal Burk

E\/F/CFG lldrdo Hstud Baf,k

Jusfi Speer

LJvalde, TX USA

Olen thompson

Hmdo,TXl,rSA

AJdlhn Orrn€r OkEdor

Rancfter

REal Estsle Dareloper DlrEclor

NaUorBl Bank

D[ector- Hondo Nalionsl Baflk

lnye6tmcfltsrR8nct€r DfEdqrchain[En txrBcloFFlondoNalbnalBEnk

Brlk€r- Dhsator, PrB8ldgnl Olrector, PreskhnL thndo Natlonal Ba.tk N/A

316 NaE MA

N'A 3% Norp NrA

0?6 None N/A

8% flooa tl/A

3% NarE N,A

W l{on€ MA

3% Nona NrA

oturer- Sp€erAg o?5 lllon3

hv€Glrrsnts Dlr€dor

Phfrmadsl Dk=dor

Farn€r DlrEctor

Frngr, Raflciler DirBcior

BaflkEr, S€crElEy N'A

?sIo llone

NTA

N'A

N/A

N/A

Spssr Agi
s(Ilg

W l{ona N/A

TH&S = Teps llerfiege Bencsheres, lnc.



FORM FIR-Y6,

Texas Heritage Ban€th,attes- lnc.

Hondo, Texas

Fiscal YEat Ending Decenrber,3't, 2-016

lReport ltem

ll. A Texas Heritage Banes:hares, l,no; is notrre,qutir€d to preparefonm

'10 Kwith'fthe,SEC.



x s erit e cs res, c.

March L3,2OL7

Shareholde/s Meeting

Texas Heritage Bancshares, lnc.

Dear Valued Shareholders,

The year 2016 was an exciting and profitable year for Texas Heritage Bancshares, lnc. and Hondo National

Bank. HNB remains profitable and competitive in all the market areas we service.

The Holding Company continues to be guided by outstanding Directors who understand our bank and

community's needs.

Our dedicated staff has done an excellent job in serving our custome/s needs and requests.

Please consider attending our Annual Shareholders Meeting to be held Tuesday, March zlsr,2OL7 at 5:00
p.m. in the Hondo National Bank lobby. We will enjoy seeing you and addressing any questions you may

have about the Holding Company or the Bank.

Enclosed you will find your personal copy of Texas Heritage Bancshares, lnc.'s Audited Financial

Statements as of December 31, 2016.

lf you are unable to join us for the Shareholder's Meeting, please complete the enclosed proxy form and

return same in the postage paid envelope.

We look forward to seeing you on March 21sr. Remember, Shareholders continue to be the life blood of
successfulorganizations. We appreciate and value each and every one of you as a Shareholder.

Sincerely,

Tim Gilles

President/CEO

11f2 18th Street . P.O. Box 34O . Hondo, Texas 78861
(83O) 426-3355 . (83O) 741-4355



NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON MARCH21,2OI7

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INCORPORATED

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the "Meeting") of Texas
Heritage Bancshares, Incorporated (the "Compdny"), will be held at 5:00 p.m., local time, on
Tuesday, March 2l ,2017 , in the lobby of The Hondo National Bank, 1 I I 2 I 8tl' Street, Hondo,
Texas 78861, for the following purposes:

To consider and act upon the election of nine (9) directors to serve until the next
Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company and until their successors are
elected and qualified;

2. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any
adjournment or postponement thereof.

You are urged to mark, sign, date, and promptly return your Proxy in the enclosed
envelope so that your shares may be voted in accordance with your wishes and in order that the
presence of a quorum may be assured. The prompt return of your signed Proxy, regardless of the
number of shares you hold, will aid the Company in reducing the expense of additional proxy
solicitation. The giving of such Proxy does not affect your right to vote in person if you attend
the meeting. Any Proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by the person giving it
at any time before it is voted at the meeting. Proxies may be revoked by delivering to Olen
Thompson, Secretary to the Board of Directors of the Company, I I l2 18tl''Street, Hondo, Texas
78861, a written notice of revocation bearing a later date than the Proxy, by duly executing and
delivering to the Secretary of the Board of Directors a subsequently dated Proxy relating to the
same shares or by attending the Meeting and voting in person (although attendance at the meeting
will not in and of itself constitute revocation of a Proxy).

Only those shareholders of record at the close of business on March 1,2017, will be

entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

By Order of the Directors

Tim Gilles
President



PROXY TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INCORPORATED

PROXY FOR ANNUAL MEETINC OF SHAREHOLDERS

March 21,2017

PROXY

The undersigned, revoking all proxies heretofore given, hereby appoints Fred J. Yanta and Justin
Speer, and each of them, with or without the other, as proxies, or. instead
(do not designate an officer or employee of the Company to act as your proxy), as proxy, with full
power of substitution, to vote all shares of common stock that the undersigned is entitled to vote at the
Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of Texas Heritage Bancshares, Inc. to be held in the lobby of The
Hondo National Bank at I I 12 l8rh Street, Hondo, Texas 78861, on Tuesday, March 21,2017, at 5:00
p.m., local time, and at all adjournments thereof as follows:

(l) The election of the following persons as directors of the Company to serve until the next Annual
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company and until their successors are elected and qualified:

James E. Barden
Tim Gilles
Joe E. Hargrove
Reagan Houston, IV
David A. McGuffin
Mike Miller
Robert Peden
Fred J. Yanta
Justin Speer

_Against
_Against
_Against
_Against
_Against
_Against
_Against
_Against
_Against

For
For
For
For
For
For
For

Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain

For
For

(2) In their discretion, upon any other business which may properly come before said meeting.

This proxy will be voted as you specif, above. If no specification is made, the Proxy
will be voted FOR the persons named in proposal (l) above. Receipt of the Notice of Annual
Meeting and the Proxy Statement/Prospectus dated March 1,2017 , are hereby acknowledged,

THIS PROXY IS SOLICTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TEXAS
HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INCORPORATED.

PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND PROMPTLY RETURN THE PROXY CARD
USING THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. NO POSTAGE IS REQUIRED IF MAILED IN THE
UNITED STATES.

Please sign your name, exactly as it appears below. Joint owners must each sign. When signing
as attorney, executor, administrator, trustee or guardian, please give full title as it appears hereon.
Ifheld by a corporation, please sign in full corporate narne by the president or other authorized
officer. lf held by a partnership, please sign in the partnership's name by an authorized partner or
officer.

Dated 2011

Signature

Signature, if held jointly, or office or title held

Please Print
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CER'IIFIED P UBLIC ACCOUN TAiVIs

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors
Texas Heritage Bancshares,lnc. and Subsidiary
Hondo, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Teras Heritage Bancshares. Inc. and

Subsidiary (the "Company"). which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of Decernber 31, 2016 and

20.l5, and the related consolidated statements of income. comprehensive income. changes in shareholders'
equity, and cash florvs for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statenlents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Marragement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated t'inancial
statemellts in accordance rvith U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and nraintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Aud itor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statemeuts are fiee tiom material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated tlnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of nlaterial misstatement of the consolidated tlnancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assesslnents, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entiry's preparation and t'air presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circunrstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entiry's intemal control. Accordingly. lve express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluatin-e the overallpresentation of the consolidated
flnancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of Texas Heritage Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31,2016 and2015,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Report of Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a

whole. The accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the consolidated hnancial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used

to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the

consolidated financial statements as a whole.

.}"il^^., ld*to^* { Ifu"',"b,I{, ? . C .

San Antonio, Texas

February 25,201'l



TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALAI\CE SHEETS

December 31, 20r6 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and due from banks
Total cash and cash equivalents

Time deposis
Securities available-lbr-sale, at estimated market value
Securities held-to-maturity, at cost

Loans, net

Loans held-for-sale, at tair value
Premises and equipment net

Accrued interest receivable

Other real esLate o' ned, net
Cash surrender value ollil'e insurance
Goodwill
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposis:

Non-interest bearing
Interest bearing

Total deposits

Accrued interest payable

Bonowings
Other liabilities

Total tiabilities

Shareholders' Equity
Common stock, par value $l per share: authorized 2,000,000 shares;

issued and outstanding 783,000 shares in 20 I 6 and 20 t 5

Additional paid-in capital
Retained eamings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

$ 7,862,282 S 6,858,004

7,862,282 6,858,004

t42,63t,781 120,964-776

248,000

79,238,448
4,657.864

3,571,430
1,379,966

30I,858
700,519
l2o,416

1,404,045

746.725

77,2t2,883
22,310,792

6,674,s13
3,399,586
1.461,940

333,476

680,096
120,416

1,327.843

s 242.115.s09 s 242.091.0s0

s 53,743,732
163.812.684

s s7,239,190
1s3,222,073

217,556,416 2t0,461,263

38,978
2,216,610

418,484

4 r,390

9.586,95 r

404.230

220,230,488 220.493.834

783,000
3,005,020

18,808J30
(711329\

21.885.021 21.597,2t6

$ 242.11s.s09 S 242.09r.050

J



TEXAS HERITAGE BAI\CSHAR.E S, INC. AND STIBSID IARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 3l 20L6 2015

INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including fees

Investment securities:
Tarable
Ta.x-exempt

Federal funds sold
Other

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
Bon'orvings

Total interest expense

NET INTEREST INCOME

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NET INTEREST INCOME AF*TER
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NON-INTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts
Gain on sale of securities
Gain on sale of assets

Cain on sale ofothel real estate

Other
Total non-interest income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries, wages and benetlts
Occupancy and equipment
Loss on sale ofother real estate

Loss on sale of assets

Other
Total non-interest eKpense

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TA.XES

STATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

NET INCOME

$ 6,966,079 $ 6,628,049

704,653
1,301,083

74,511
5,146

97r,378
1,425,825

18,959

7 837

9,052,538 9,052.048

880,472
51,239

896,595
100.s30

931,71 L 997 125

8,120,827

240,000

8,054,922

t00,000

1,880,821 7.954,922

329,535
157,581

44,229

538,127

337,236
28.4i8

4,1 00

538.705

1,069.478 908.500

3,174,169
774,532

11,337

2,003J,27

2.941,2t0
780-469

208.89 l
1.952,946

5,963,265 5.883.s t6

2,987,040

1,800

2,979,906

t22

$ 2.985.240 S 2-979.784

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

4



T&{S mBITAGE BANC$HmES- rNC. Ai{D -SUBSTDIARY.

CON,SOLIDATED STATEIVIENITS OF C OilTPREHENSITIE INCOME

Yeirs: Eltailed Dese.mber 3l . aAN6 201'5

ISE,IIINiCQME

,Qff'flEB ITEITIE OF €SM.PREHENSI\trE INc.Oll[-E
Adirt$@sllt fof g4in qn .sale of available.for-sale seerniticr
Unrgalired holEhg yEnh Goss) arhlng dtrirg period

To@l qthe-r rleJttt ofrqomF€helsivc iDeome

,6_o=mpr€hqls_lveiqltO@e

$ 1p_85F4{t $ 7,%9,7'f.4

n.48$_.785t

$ l50I;455 8 3,12;6t,129

Sec [otes to- tfie congolidated financial stateneuG.

5



TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDTARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended December 3l 2016 and20l5

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-ln Capitd

Retained

Earnings

Total
Shareholders'

Equity

Balance at January l, 201 5

Net income

Change in other comprehensive income

Distributions to shareholders

Balance at December 31, 2015

Net income

Change in other comprehensive income

Distributions to shareholders

Balance at December 31.2016

$ 783,000 s 3,005,020 $ 14,800,806

- 2,979.784

(713.850)

s 626,1 l l

r46,345

s t9,214,931

2,9',19.784

146,345

(743.850)

783,000 3,005,020 t7,036,7 40

2.985,240

7'72,456 21,597,2t6

2,985240

(1,483,785)

( I,213,650)

(1,483,785)

(1,213,650)

s 783.000 $ 3.005.020 $ 1E.808J30 $ (7u.329) S 21.885,021

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSTIARE S, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 3 I 2016 20r5

OPERA,TING ACTTVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Gain on sale of securities
Net amortization of investmenr premiums

Depreciation and amortization
Provision fbr loan losses

(Gain) loss on sale of assets

(Gain) toss on sale of other real estate

Anrortization on core deposit intangible
Earnings on cash surrender value of lit'e insurance

Net change in:

Accrued interest receivable

Accrued interest payable

Other assets and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Activiry in securities available-1-or-sale:

Sales proceeds tiom investment securities

Maturitics, prepayments and calls
Purchases

Activiry in securities held-to-maturi ty :

Nlaturities. prepayments and cal ls

Purchases

Net ledemption of time deposits
Net change in loans

Net change in loans held-tbr-sale
Purchase of bank premises and equipment
Proceeds t'rom sale olbank premises and equipment

Additions to other real estate owned
Proceeds trom the sale ofother real estate o\vned

Net cash used by investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in deposis
Proceeds tiom bon'owings
Payments on bonolvings
Distlibutions paid to shareholders

Net cash provided (used) by tinancing activities

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

C.{SH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNINC OF YEAR

CASH AND C.{SH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH DISCLOSURES
Loan tbreclosures
Dettrred gain on orher real estate o',vned

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

$ 2,985.240 $ 2,979.784

(157,587)

647,394

324,936
240,000
(44,229)
I1,3J7

(20,423)

83,074
(2,4r2)

(60,01s)

(28,458)

803,905
323.6 I ,1

100,000

208,89 I
(4.100)

17,56 I

( l 8.868)

(202,600)
( 1.87.1)

(498,66 r)
4,007,315 3.679.194

4,913,448
192,631,619

(201,584,834)

I 7,693,538

498,725
(22,018,502)

6,674,513
(530,s51)

78,000
(4,345)

134,190

663.08 I

159.123,704
(r58.346.123)

740-789
(6.025.358)

(73e)
( 18,543,2s8)

(6,674.-s r3)
(239,880)

469.8 r3
(t7,243)
40.432

(1,s14.199) (28,809,295)

7,095,153
1.525.000

(8,895,341)
(1,213.650)

( 2.82 l.8+3 )
8,000.000
(498.141)

(743.850)
(r.488,838) 3.936. r 66

1,004.278

6.858.004

(21,193,91s)

28,05 r.9.19

$ 7.862.282 s 6.858,004

$
$

tu,497
1,933

39,965
3,63 3

s
S
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TEXAS HERJTAGE BAI\CSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA}ICIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2016 and20l5

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations - Texas Heritage Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary (the "Company") provides
loan and banking services to consumers and comrnercial customers throughout Medina, Uvalde, Real

and Bandera Counties in South Texas. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to general practices of the banking industry,.
Policies and practices which materially affect the determination of financial position, results of
operations and cash flows are summarized as follows:

Princinles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Texas
Heritage Bancshares. Inc. and the accounts of its wholly-owned subsidiary, The Hondo National Bank
(the "Bank"). All signiticant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates - In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. _senerally accepted
accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ frorn those estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to signiticant change in the rrear term relate to the
deterntination of the allowance for loan losses and the estimate of the fair value of securities.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk - Most of the Company's activities are with
custourers located in Medina, Uvalde. Real and Bandera Counties in South Texas. The types of
securities that the Company invests in are described in Note 2. The types of lending that the Company
engages in are described in Note 3.

Cash and Cash Eouivalents - For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated financial statements
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are det'ined as those amounts included in the balance sheet
captions "cash and due from banks" and "federal funds sold". Generally, federal funds are purchased
and sold in one-day periods. The Company considers all highly liquid irrvestments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. As of December 3 I , ,0 16. the FDIC Deposit
insurance coverage was $250.000.

The nrajority of cash and cash equivalents of the Company are maintained with major financial
institutions in the United States. As such, interest bearing, non-transaction account deposits with these
financial institutions may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits; however, these
deposits typically may be redeemed upon demand and therefbre, bear minirnal risk. As of December
31,2016, the marimum credit risk exposure is 52,430,851. In monitoring this credit risk, the Company
periodically evaluates the stability of the financial institutions with which it has deposits.

Investment Securities - Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and abillty to
hold to maturity are classit'ied as "held-to-maturitlr" and are recorded at amortized cost.

Securities not classified as held-to-maturity. including equity securities rvith readily determinable fair
values, are classit'ied as "available-for-sale" and recorded at fair value, rvith unrealized gains and losses
excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income.
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TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSIIARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 20 l6 and 2015

l. SIIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized as interest income using the interest method over the
terms of the securities. Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturiqv and available-for-sale securities
below their cost that are deemed to be other than temporary, if any, are ret'lected in earnings as realized
losses. In determining whether other-tlran-temporary impairment exists, management considers many
factors, including the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, the
financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, and the intent and ability of the Company to
retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufllcient to allow for any anticipated recovery in
fairvalue. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded onthe trade date andare determined
using the specific identification method.

Mortgage-backed securities represent participating interests in pools of long-term first mortgage loans
originated and serviced by the issuers of the securities. Market interest rate fluctuations can affect the
prepayment speed of principal and the yield on the security.

Loans - The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers. A substantial
portion of the loan portfolio is represented by real estate loans throughout Medina, Uvalde, Real and
Bandera Counties in South Teras. The abiliry of the Company's debtors to honor their contracts is

dependent upon the general economic conditions in these areas.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturiry or
pay-off generally are repofted at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for net charge-
ofts, and the allowance for loan losses.

Interest on loans is accrued on a daily basis. The accrual of interest on mortgage. consumer and
commercial loans is discontinued at the time when, in management's opinion, the borrorver may be

unable to meet payments as they become due. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are
placed on nonaccrual or charged ofTare reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is
accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifuing for return to accrual. Loans
are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought
current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Fees and costs associated with originating loans are recognized as income and expense generally in the
period in which f-ees are received and costs are incurred. Under U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, such net fees or costs generally are defered and recognized over the life of the loan as an
adjustment of yield. Management believes that not deferring such fees and costs and amortizing them
over tlre life of the related loans does not materially affect the financial position or results of operations
of the Company.

9



TEXAS IIERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SI.]BSIDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and20l5

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Troubled Debt Restructured Loans - A troubled debt restructured loan is a loan which the
Company, fbr reasons related to a borrower's fi-nancial ditficulties, grants a concession to the borrower
that the Company would not otherwise consider. The loan terms which have been modified or
restructured due to a borrower's financial difficulty, include but are not limited to a reduction in the
stated interest rate; an extension of the maturity at an interest rate below current market; a reduction in
the face amount of the debt; a reduction in the accrued interest; or re-aging, extensions, deferrals,
renewals and rewrites. A troubled debt restructured loan would generally be considered impaired in
the year of modification and will be assessed periodically for continued impairment.

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is a resele established through a

provision for loan losses charged to expense, which represents management's best estimate of probable
losses that have been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in the judgrnent of
management, is necessary to reserve for estimated loan losses inherent in the loan poftfolio. The level
of the allowance reflects management's continuing evaluation of industry concentrations, specific
credit risks, loan loss experience. current loan portfolio quality, present economic, political and
regulatory conditions and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio, as well as trends in
the fbregoing. Portions of the allowance may be allocated for specific credits; horvever, tlre entire
allowance is available forany creditthat, in management's judgment, should be charged off.

While management utilizes its best judgment and information available, the ultimate adequacy of the
allowance is dependent upon a variefv of factors beyond the Companv's control, including the
performance of the Bank's loan portfolio, the economy, changes in interest rates and the view of the
regulatory authorities toward loan classifications.

Loans Held-for-Sale - Loans held-for-sale, which are primarily mortgage loans, are repofted at the
lower of cost or market value on an aggregate loan portfolio basis. Gains or losses realized on the sales

of loans are recognized at the time of sale and are determined by the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying value of the loans sold including any deferred origination fees and costs.
Any gains and losses recognized on sales of mortgage loans are included in earrrings.

Advertising - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Financial Instruments - ln the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into
commitments to extend credit, including commercial lefters of credit and standby letters of credit.
Such financial instruments are recorded when they are tlnded.

Premises and Equipment - Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less

accumulated depreciation computed on the straight-line method over the estinrated useful lives of the
assets.

Buildings and improvements
Furn iture and equipment

l0-40 years

5-10 years

l0



TEXAS I{ERITAGB BANCSIIARES, INC. AI\D SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2016 and 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

When an asset is sold. retired, or otherwise disposed of, cost and related accumulated depreciation are

removed from the accounts and any' resulting gain or loss is included in current operations. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred and expenditures for renewals and betterments are

capitalized.

Foreclosed Assets - Assets acquired through tbreclosure are initially recorded at tair value less

estimated selling cost at the date of foreclosure. All write-downs based on the asset's fair value at the
date of acquisition are charged to the allowance tbr loan losses. After foreclosure, properl,v- held-for-
sale is carried at the lower olthe new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell and depreciation is not
recorded. Impairment losses on property to be held and used are measured as the amount by which the
canying amount of a properfy exceeds its fair value and depreciated based on the remaining useful life.
Costs of significant propert)'improvements are capitalized, whereas costs relating to holdlng property
are expensed. Valuations are periodically perfonned by management, and any subsequent write-dorvns
are recorded as a charge to operations, if necessary', to reduce the carrying value of a property to the
lower of its cost or fair value less cost to sell.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance - The Com pany has purchased life insurance policies on
ceftain executives. Lif'e insurance policies are initially recorded at cost at the date of purchase.
Subsequent to purchase, the policies are periodically adjusted for changes in the contract value. The
adjustrnent to contract value increases or decreases the calrying value of the policies and is recorded as

income or expense on the consolidated statement of income.

Restricted Investments - Restricted investnrents include various stocks and their carr.ving value is

determined by the ultimate recoverability of par value, rather than by recognizing temporary declines
in value. Federal Resen'e Bank stock had a can_ving value of $188,650 as of December 3[,2016 and
2015. Federal HomeLoan Bankstockhadacarryingvalueof S9l4,900and$9l2.900asof December
31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Independent Bankers Capital Fund stock had a carrying value of
5124,654 and $119,303 as of Decenrber 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. All are carried in other
assets.

Income Taxes - The Companv arrd its principal subsidiary, Hondo National Bank will file a

consolidated corporate federal income tax return. The Conrpany elected to be taxed as a Sub-Chapter S

Corporation under the lnternal Revenue Code. effective January l, 20 10. Under those provisions, the

Company's income, deductions, losses. and credits flow directly to the shareholders. The Company
does pay franchise taxes which are considered state income taxes on the consolidated statements
of income.

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require the Company management to evaluate tax
positions taken by the Company and recognize a tax liabilit_v (or asset) if the Company has taken an

uncertain position that more likely than not rvould not be sustained upon examination by the Internal
Revenue Service. The Company's management has analyzed the tax positions taken by the Company,
and has concluded that as of December 31,20[6 and 2015. there are no uncertain positions taken or
expected to be taken that would require recognition of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the tlnancial
statements.
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TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND STJBSIDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and 2015

2. II\TVESTNIENTSECIJRITIES

The Company is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits
for any tax periods in progress. The Company's management believes it is no longer subject to income
tax examinations tbr.vears prior to 2013.

Investment securities available-fo r-sale cons isted of the fo I I ow ing:

Amortized
Cost

Gross

Unrealized
Gains

Cross
Unrealized

Losses

Estimated
Market
Value

December 31, 2016

Mortgage-backed securities

State and political subdivisions

Total

December 31,2015

Mortgage- backed securities

State and political subdivisions

Total

December 31, 201.6

Mortgage-backed securities

State and political subdivisions

Total

December 31. 2015

Mortgage-backed securities
U.S. Agency
State and political subdivisions

Total

$ 24,492,760 S

55,457,017
39,611 $

161,521
250,166
662,295

s 24,282,205
54,956,243

s 79,949,717 s 201,132 S 912,461 s 79,238,448

$ 20,767,486
55,672,941

$ 23 5,300 $ $ 20.958,934
56,253,949

43,852
I 18,055699 063

$ '76,440,427 S 934,363 $ 161.907 $ 77,212,883

Investment securities held-to-maturity consisted of the following:

Amortized
Cost

Gross

Unrealized
Gains

Gross

Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Market
Value

$ 3,381,864 $

1,276,000
s 38,259 $ 3,343,605

856 1275,144

$ 4,657,864 S

$ 4,364,366 $
16,620,426

1,326,000

$ 39,115 $ 4,618,749

$ 50,933 $

329,884
66,566

4,313,433
16,295,342
1,259,434

4.800

s 22.310.192

t2

s 4,800 $ 447,383 $ 21,868,209



TEXAS I{ERITAGE BANCSTIAR-ES, INC. AIID STIBSID IARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 20 l6 and 2015

2. INVESTMENT SECIJRITIES (continued)

The amortized cost and estimated market value of securities at December 31, 2016, by contractual
maturities. are sholvn below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations lvith or without call or prepaynrent
penalties.

Investment securities available-for-sale

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Market
Value

Due in one year or less

Due in one to five years

Due in five to ten years

Due in over ten )'ears or more

Mortgage-bac ked secu rities

Total

I nvestment securities held-to-matu rity:

Due in one year or less

Due in one to five years

Due in five to ten years

Due in ten years or more

Sale proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities
Cross gains on sale of available-for-sale securities
Gross losses on sale of available-for-sale securities

$ 79,949,717 S 79,238,448

s 2,092,936
17,813,238
31,511,961

4,039,992

s 2,099,672
17,742,736
31,238,330
3,876,105

55,457,017
24,492,760

54,956,243
24,282,205

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Market
Value

S 75,000 $

387,000
419,000
395,000

75,000
387,000
418,144
395,000

1,276,000
3,381,864

1,275,144
3J43,605Mortgage-backed securities

Total $ 4,657,864 $ 4,618.749

Investment securities with a carrying value of 522,044,840 and $15,875,625 at December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as required or
permitted by law.

2016 2015

$

$

$

4,913,448
157,587

663,081

28,458
s
$

$
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TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2016 and 2015

2. INVESTMENTSECIJRITIES(continued)

The tbllowing table shows investments gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized
loss position, at December 3 l, 20 16.

Less than [? months 12 months or more Total

Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses

Unrealized
Losses

Unrealized
Losses

Available-for-sale:

Mortgage-backed
securities ( 8)

State and political
subdivision ( 143)

Total

Held-to-maturily:

Mortgage-backed
securities (2)

State and political

subdivision ( I )

$ 18,186,307

32,972,534

s 51,158,841

s 250,166

601,007

s 857,173

Fair Value Fair Value

$ S 250,166

662,2953,619.998 55,288

$ 3,619,998 S 55,288 $ 54,778.839 $ 912,461

$ s 18,186J07

36,592,532

$ 3,343,605

s9,144

s 38,259 $ S $ 3,343,605 S 38,259

85659,144

Total $ 3,402,749 S 39,115 $ $ s 3,402,749 S 39.1 15

Unrealized losses - The unrealized losses on the Company's investment were caused by interest rate

changes. The Company purchased some of these investments at a premium relative to their face
amount. AtDecember3l,20l6,theoutstandingpremiumrelatedtoinvestmentsinalosspositionare
as follows:

Premium

856

State and political subdivisions
Mortgage-backed securities

s 408,lll
s 1,580,686

Accordingly, it is expected that the securities rvith premiums could be settled at a price less than the
amortized cost of the Company's investment. Because the decline in market value is attributable to
changes in interest rates and not credit quality and because the Company has the ability and intent to

hold these investments until a recovery of fhir value, which may be maturilv, the Company does not
consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2016.

Other-than-temporxry Impairment - Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary
impairment at least quarterly, and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such
evaluation. Consideration is given to (l) the tength of time and the extentto which the fair value has

been less than cosl (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) evaluation
by the Company of (a) its intent to sell a debt security prior to recovery and (b) whether it is more
likely than not the Company will have to sell the debt security prior to recovery. As of Decenrber 31,

201 6, no investment securities were other-than-tenrporarily impaired.

t4



TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND STIBSIDIARY

NOTES TO TtM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2016 and 2015

3. LOANS AND ALLOWAIICE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Loans consisted of the following at December 3 l, 2016 and 2015

Commercial
Real estate

Agriculrure
Consumer and other

Total loans

20r6 201 5

s 26,131,892 $

87,173,887
21,024,626

9,554,341

23,144,249
11,326,263
17,724,183

9,850,542

143,884,746

(1,252,965)

t22,045,237

( r,080.461)Less: Allowance for loan losses

Total net s 142,631,781 s 120,964.176

Loan Origination/Risk Management - The Company has certain lending policies and procedures in
place that are designed to maximize loan income rvithin an acceptable level of risk. Management
reviews and approves these policies and procedures on an annual basis. A reporting system

supplements the review process b1' providing management with frequent reports related to loan
production, loan qualiry, concentrations of credit, loan delinquencies. and non-performing and
potential problem loans.

Commercial loans are undenvritten by evaluating and understanding the borrower's ability to repay the
loan through operating profitably and effectively growing its business. The Company's managenlent
exanrines cun'ent and projected cash flow-s to determine the abiliry of the bon'ow'er to repal' their
obligations as agreed. Commercial loans are primarily made based on the credit quality and global
cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower. The
cash flo'uvs of borrowers, holvever. may not be as expected and the collateral securing these loans may
also fluctuate in value. Most commercial loans are secured b_v the assets being financed or other
business assets such as accounts receivable or inventory and may incorporate a personal guarantee to
add strength to the credit and reduce the risk on a transaction to an acceptable level; however, some
short-term loans may be made on an unsecured basis to the most credit worthy borrowers. In the case

of loans secured by accounts receivable, the availability of funds fbr the repayment of these loans may
be substantially dependent on the abiliry of the borrower to collect amounts due fronr its customers.
Due to the nature of accounts receivable and inventory secured loans, the Company closely monitors
credit availability and collateral through the use of various tools, including but not Iimited to
borrowing-base fornrulas, periodic accounts receivable agin-e, periodic inventory audits, and/or
collateral inspections.

Commercial real estate loans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to commercial
loans. Commercial real estate lending ry"pically involves higher loan principal amounts and the
repayment of these loans is generally largely dependent on the successfirl operation of the propert-v

securing the loan or the business conducted on the properry securing the loan. Commercial real estate

loans may be more adversely affected by conditions in the real estate nrarkets or in the general
economy.
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TEXAS HERITAGE BAIICSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and 2015

3. LOAIIS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued)

Management monitors and evaluates commercial real estate loans based on collateral and risk grade

criteria. As a general rule, the Company avoids financing special use projects unless strong secondar.v
support is present to help mitigate risk.

With respect to loans to developers and builders, the Company generally requires the borrower to have
a proven record of success and an expertise in the building lndustry. Construction loans are

underwritten utilizing feasibility studies, independent appraisal reviews, sensitiviry-. analysis of
absorption and lease rates and financial analysis of the developers and property owners. Construction
loans are generally based upon estlmates of costs and value associated with the conrplete project.
These estimates may be inaccurate. Construction loans often involve the disbursement of substantial
funds with repayment substantially dependent on the success of the ultimate project. Sources of
repayment for these types of loans may be pre-committed permanent loans from approved long-term
Ienders, sales of developed propefty, or an interim loan commitment from the Company until
permanent firrancing is obtained. These loans are closely monitored by on-site inspections and are

considered to have higher risks than other real esLate loans due to their ultimate repayment being
sensitive to interest rate changes, governmental regulation of reaI property, general econonric
conditions and the availability of long-term financing.

Consumer real estate loans are subject to the underwriting standards developed by the Federal National
Mongage Association for prirne mortgages. These standards place a premium on the borrower's
current abiliS,'to service debt and a proven track record of servicing debt in the past. The Contpany's
policies and procedures discourage the underwriting of sub-prime mortgages. The Company
periodically monitors its loans tbrdeterioration in the borrorver's financial strength and deterioration in
property values.

The Compan)-'s non-real estate consurlrer loans are based on the borrower's proven earning capaciry
over the term of fie loan. The Cornpanlz monitors payment perlormance periodically fbr consumer
loans to identify any deterioration in the borrower's financial strength. To monitor and manage
consumer loan risk, policies and procedures are developed and modified, as needed, jointly by
management and staff. This activitv. coupled with a relatively small volurne of consumer loans.
minimizes risk.

Agriculrural loans are made to sound and prudent farmers and ranchers within the Company's market
area even thougJr agriculture may be an unstable industry. In order to minimize risk, sound lending
policies are extremely important, taking into considemtion not only the value of collateral ofl'ered but
also the performance history and anticipated cash flolv from a given farming or ranching operation.
Al[ agricultural loan applications require cash flow projection for the coming fanning season, and the
projection must show a margin between income and expense that is sufficient to repay the loan from
normal farm operations. All agriculture loans will be supported by a perfected filst securiw interest
position in the products being produced.
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TEXAS MRITAGE BAIICSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and2015

3. LOANS AND ALLOWAITCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued)

The Company engages an external consulting firm to complete an independent loan review that
reviews and validates the credit risk program on a periodic basis. Results of these reviews are

presented to management and the Board of Directors. The loan review process complements and
reinforces the risk ratings and credit quality assessment decisions made by lenders and credit
personnel, as well as the Company's policies and procedures.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company makes loans to executive officers and directors.
These loans are made on substantially the same terms, including interest and collateral, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other customers. Loans to these related pafties,
including companies in which they are principal owners are as follows:

2016 20ts

Principal outstanding, beginning of year

Loans newly considered related party

Loans no longer considered related party

New loans made in current year
Repayments

Principal outstanding, end of year

$ 4,953,819 $

(221,276\
3,143,800

(2,048,293)

4,161,449
69.379

( l 80.984)
4,48t,842

(3,s77,867)

$ 5,828,050

An age analysis of past due loans, segregated by class of loans, as of December 3l , 2016 and 2015,
were as follows:

Creater
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Than I'otal

Past Due Past Due 90 Davs Past Duc
Total

Recorded
lnvestment

> 90 Days and
StilI AccruingCurrent Loans

December Jl. 2016

Cornmercial

Real estate

Agriculture
Consumer and

other

Total

December3l.2015

Comrnercia.l

Real estate

Agrioulnre
Consumer and

other

$

46C,435 $
237.1+2

84.52 I

s 26,131,892 S

85,s67,609
21,021,626

26,r31,892 S

87, r 73.887

2t.t)24,626

S s $

$

1J83.630 212,956 9,692 1.606,278 9,692

93,109 l9,9ll - 113.020 9,t{ I .32 r 9.s5{,3.1r

S l.{76,739 S 232,867 $ 9,692 $ 1,719,298 S 1{2,165.4.18 S 1113,88.1.7.16 $ 9,692

$ $ 469.435 $

237.742

84"52I

12.674,814 $

7 t.088.52 r

t7,639.662

23.144.249 $

7 t.3?6.263

t7,724,183

t1.647

5 804.3-15

t2.647

$ 80+,34-5

9,837,895 9,356._s42

Total $ $

l7

$ l2 t,2+0,8e2 s t22,045.231 s



TEXAS HERITAGE BA}[C SHARf, S, INC. AND STIBSID IARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINA}ICIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and 2015

3. LOANS AND ALLOWAI\CE FOR LOAII LOSSES (continued)

Impaired loans, segregated by class of loans, as of December 31,2016 and 2015, are set forth in the
following table.

Recorded
Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Average
Recorded

Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized
Related

Allowance

s

s 49,209 s 49,209 $ 49,209 S 24,605 S

10,477

$ 49,209 $ 49,209 S 49209 $ 24,605 $
t0,471

s 49,209 S 49,209 S 49,209 S 35,082 S

$ $ s
16,017

S $ $ $ S

20,954 20,9s4 2,043 55,001

s S S s s
20,954 20,9s4 2.043 71,018

s 20,954

December 31, 2016

With no related allowance
Commercial
Real estate

Agriculture
Consumer and other

With a related allowance
Commercial
Real estate

Agriculture
Consumer and other

Total:
Commercial
Real estate

Agriculture
Consumer and other

Total

December I l, 2015

With no related allowance
Commercial
Real estate

Agriculture
Consunrer and other

With a related allowance
Commercial
Real estate
Agriculture
Consumer and other

Total:
Commercial
Real estate

Agriculture
Consumer and other

$$$$

s$

Total s 20,9s4

l8
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TEXAS IIERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and 2015

3. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued)

There was no effect of not recognizing interest income on nonaccrual loans in accordance with the
original terms during the year ended December 3 l, 2016. The effect of not recognizing interest income
on nonaccrual loans in accordance with the original ternrs was approximately $3,800 during the year
ended December 3 l, 2015, of forgone interest.

Credit Oualitv Indicators - As part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the Company's
loan portfolio. the Company utilizes a risk grading system to assign a risk grade to each of its loans.
Accurate and tirnely credit grading is a primary component of an effective loan review system. Loans
are graded on a scale of I to 7. A description of the general characteristics of the 7 risk grades are as

follows:

Grade I - PASS - These grade loans represent the least possible credit risk in the market for the

Company. More specifically. these loans are secured by either cash deposits of the Company or
marketable securities on a recognized exchange which are published on a daily basis. This
collateral should include margins with no possible constraints in liquidation.

Grade 2 - PASS - These grade loans represent a completely acceptable asset and have no
identifiable present or significant potential risk of collection. The loan must conforn in all respects

to established underwriting policy standards tbr that type of loan. Existing credit and/or collateral
exceptions should not exist.

Grade 3 - PASSAilATCH - These grade loans are currently protected but possess a potential
weakness. These assets continue an undue and unwanted credit risk but not to the point justifoing
a classification of special mention. The potential weakness may, if not checked or corrected,
weaken the credit's quality and/or collateral position at some future date. Instances of credits
which may be a grade 3 includel loans containing outstanding exceptions, conditions of and control
over collateral, failure to obtain proper documentation, deviations from prudent lending practice
and/or adverse trends in the obligor's operations or financial condition.

Grade 4 - SPECIAL MENTION - These grade loans consists of potentially weak loans which
present an unwarranted credit risk. These loans require management's special attention. These
loans have bomow'ers that are experiencing difficulties repaying and have the potential to threaten
the Cornpany's position.

Grade 5 - SUBSTANDARD - This grade consists of performing loans which ale classified
substandard. A substandard credit is inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classit'ied must have a positive
and well-defined weakness or lveaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. Potential, but
unrealized. weaknesses are not suft-rcient cause for a substandard classification.

t9



TEXAS HERITAGI, BANCSHAR.BS, INC. AND SUBSTDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016and2015

3. LOANS AND ALLOWAI\ICE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued)

Grade 6 - DOUBTFIIL - This grade is tbr "doubtful" in accordance with regulatory guidelines.
An asset classified doubtful has all the weaknesses inherent in a substandard classit-rcation wlth the
added factor that the weaknesses are pronounced to the point where, on the basis of current facts,
conditions and values. collection or liquidation in full is highly questionable or improbable. While
the possibility of loss is extremely high, the existence of specific pending factors, wliich maywork
to the obligor's advantage, warrants that the estimated loss be deferred until a more exact status is
determined.

Pending factors include, but are not limited to; merger, acquisition, liquidation, capital injection,
perfecting liens on additional collateral, and refinancing plans. In instances w'hen collection of a
specific poftion appears highly improbable, the entire credit should not autonratically be classified
as doubtful. Fufihermore, the length of time a loan is classified Doubtful is a matter of judgment.
Flowever, a conclusion should be reached within a reasonable period of tirne (6 to 12 months)
whether to upgrade the classification.

Grade 7 - LOSS - These grade loans are considered uncollectible and cannot be considered a
bankable asset. Placing a loan in this category does not preclude the chance fbr recovery, but
rather requires that the loan be taken offthe books in case of a long-term potential recovery.

Commercial Real Estate Agricultural
Consumer
and other Total

December 31, 2016

Credit Risk Profile bv
I n t ern al lv .lss iened G r ade

Grade:
Pass/Pass Watch
Special mention

Substandard
Doubtful
Loss

Total

Credit Risk Prortk Based on
Pavment Activin

Performing
Nonperforming

Total

s 25,638,229 S 87,047,310
409,209

84,.154 126,517

s 18,897,752 $

291,337

1,935,537

9,548,737 S 141,I32,028
- 100,546

5,604 2,052,172

s 26,131,892 S 87,173,887 $ 21,024,626 $ 9,554,34t $ 143,884,746

s 26,131,892 S 85,567,609 S 21,024,626
78

$ 9,4-11,321
I13,020

s t.12,165,448
1,719,298

$ 87.17s 26,131,892

20

3,887 S 2l s 9,554,341 $ 143,884,746



TEXAS ITERITAGE BAIICSITARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and 2015

3. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAI\ LOSSES (continued)

Commercial Real Estate Agricultural

December 3 l, 20 l 5

Consumer
and other

Credit Risk ProJile 4t
I nt ernall.y Ass igned G rade

Grade:
Pass/Pass Watch
Special mention
Substandard
Doubttul
Loss

Total

Credit Risk Profile Based on
Puymcnt ,4ctivint

Performing
Nonpertbrming

s 22,0 t 3,780 S 71,305,723
r, 100.260

30,209 20,540

$ t4,925,285 S

204,727
2.594,fl1

Total

9,850.s42 $ rr8,09s,330
- r.304,987
- 2,644,920

s 23,t44,249 S 71.326,263 s 17.724.183 s 9.850,542 $ 122.04s.231

$ 22,674,814 S 7l,088.521
469 435 237 742

s 17,639,662
84.52 r

s 9,83 7,895

t2.647
s 12 I ,240.892

804,345

Total $ 23.t44.249 S 71,326.263 s 17.724.t83 $ 9.850,542 5t22.045,237

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through a

provision for loan losses charged to expense, which represents management's bestestimate of probable
losses that have been incured within the existing porrfolio of loans. The allowance, in the judgment of
managemenl is necessary to resewe for estimated loan losses and risks inherent in the loan porrfolio.
The Company's allowance for loan loss methodology includes allowance allocations calculated in
accordance with ASC Topic 310, ''Receivables" and allowance allocations calculated in accordance
with ASC Topic 450, "Contingencies." Accordirrgly, the methodology is based on historical loss

experience by B'pe of credit and internal risk grade, changes in the composition and volunre of the
portfolio, and specific loss allocations, with adjustments tbr current events and conditions. The
Company's process for determining the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses is designed to
account for credit deterioration as it occurs.

The provision for loan losses reflects management's periodic evaluation of individual loans and
changes to the required allowance for specific loans, economic factors, past loan loss experience, loan
quality trends, including the levels of and trends related to non-accrual loans, past due loans. potential
problem loans, criticized loans and net charge-offs or recoveries, iunong other factors.
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TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSITARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and2015

3. LOAIIS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued)

The level of the allowance reflects management's continuing evaluation of industry concentrations,
specific credit risks, loan loss experience, current loan portfolio quality, present economic, political and

regulatory conditions and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. Porlions of the

allowance may be allocated for specific credits; however, the entire allowance is available for any
credit that, in management's judgment, should be charged off. While management utilizes its best
judgment and information available, the ultimate adequacy of the allowance is dependent upon a

variety of factors beyond the Company's control, including. among other things, the performance of
the Company's loan portfolio. the economv, changes in interest rates and the view of the regulatory
authorities toward loan classifications.

The Company's allowance for loan losses consists of three elements: (i) specific valuatiou allowances
determined in accordance with ASC Topic 310 based on probable losses on specific loans; (ii)
historical valuation allowances determined in accordance with ASC Topic 450 based on historical loan
loss experience for similar loans with similar characteristics and trends, adjusted. as necessary, to

reflect the impact of current conditions; and (iii) general valuation allowances deterrtrined in
accordance with ASC Topic 450 based on general economic conditions and other qualitative risk
factors both internal and external to the Company.

The allowances established for probable losses on specific loans are based on a regular analysis and

evaluation of problem loans. Loans are classified based on an internal credit risk grading process that
evaluates, among other things: (i) the borrower's abilitv to repay; (ii) the underlying collateral, if any;
and (iii) the economic environment and industry in which the borrower operates. The initial analysis is

performed by the relationship manager and credit rating is reviewed and approved by the Chief
Lending Officer.

Specific valuation allowances are determined by analyzing the borrorver's ability to repay amounts
owed, collateral deficiencies, the relative risk grade of the loan and economic conditions affecting the

borrower's industry, among other rhings. The Company calculates historical loss ratios for
classit-ications of sirnilar loans based on the proportion of actual charge-offs experienced to the total
population of loans in the category. The historical loss ratios are periodically updated based on actual
charge-off experience.

The Company's categories of similar loans include similarly risk-graded groups of commercial loans,

commercial real estate loans. consumer real estate loans and consumer and other loans. General
valuation allowances are based on general economic conditions and other qualitative risk factors both
internal and external to the Company. [n general, such valuation allowances are determined by
evaluating. arnong other things: (i) the experience, ability and effectiveness olthe Conrpany's lending
management and staffl (ii) the effectiveness of the Company's loan policies, procedures and internal
controls; (iii) changes in asset qualiry; (iv) changes in nature and loan portfolio volume; (v) the

composition and concentrations of credit: (vi) the effectiveness of the loan review function: (r,ii) the

impact of national and local economic business conditions; and (viii) the irnpact of external factors,
such as competition or legal and regulatory requirements. The results are then input into a "general
allocation lnatrix" to determine an appropriate general valuation allowance. Loans identified as losses

by management, external loan review and/or bank examiners are charged-oflf.
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TEXAS HERITAGE BA}IC SHARES, INC. AND STIBSIDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2016 and20l5

3. LOANS AllD ALLOWANCf, FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued)

Fufthermore, consumer loan accounts are charged-off automatically based on regulatory requirements.
The following table details activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the years

ended December 31,2016 and 2015. Allocation of a portion of the allowance to one category of loans
does not preclude its availabilifv to absorb losses in other categories.

Allowance -for Loan Loss

Commercial Real Estate Agriculture
Consumer
ard other Unallocated Tota.l

Deccmber 31, 2016

Beginning balance

Charge-o tls
Recoveries
Provision

Ending balance

Ending balunce allocated to loans

individually evalunted fbr impairment $

Ending balance allocated to loans
collectively evaluated tbr impainncnt

Total AL LL at December i I . 20 I 6

December 3l , 20 l5

Beginning balance

Charge-o lli
Recoveries
Provision

Ending balance

Ending balance allocated to loans

Lndividually e,r'aluated tbr impairnrent $

Ending balance allocated to l<lans

collectively evaluated tbr impairment

Tota.l AILL at December 3 l. 20 [ 5

$ 269,903
(ls.8sa

81.461

$ 335,507

$ 271,941

122.814

$ 394,76r

s 405.638 $ 132,973
(33J0r) (52,784)

13,029 2t,117
7,000 2E,125

s 392J66 S l3oJJl

S s 1.080,461
(r0r.942)

34,4.16
240,000

$ r rs2.96s

s 49109

$ 308.712

s

286,298 J94,76r 392366 t30,J3l - t r0J,756

s 335,50?$ 394.761S J92J66S r30J31S - Sr,252,965

s r36'e03 s 't6e'er1 - 
??l.ill 

t 
ili,?;], 

$ 32'2e0 t 
'?3i,;il,

36,040 - 36.040
1t3.000 ,L97.967\ 221.579 (24.322\ (32,290) 1 00.000

$___2!129!. $___4p47_ $ 405,638 q____!!2p21 $ - $___t q!q{r

49.209 S S S

4r,5li $ 2,043 $ 265,156 $

s

$

228.390 269.904

s 269,903 S 27 t,947

r-10.482 132_9'73 17t 149

$ 40s.638 S_=E2pli $ - $_-_!,!!gJf]-
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TEXAS ITT',RITAGE BAI\IC SILARE S, INC. AIID SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO TITT' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and 2015

3. LOAi\S AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued)

The Company's recorded investment in loans as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 related to each

balance in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segnlent and disaggregated on the basis of the

Company's impairment methodology was as follows:

Loans Receivable

Commercial Rea[ Estate Agriculture
Consumer
and other

December 31, 2016

Ending balance of loans individually
evaluated lbr impairment

Ending balance of loans collectively

evaluated tbr impairment

Ending balance

December3l.20l5

Ending balance ol loans individually
evaluated tbr impairment

Ending balance of loans collectively
evaluated tbr impairment

Ending balance

Total

$ 493.663 S 126,517 $ 2,126,814 $ 5,604 $ 2,752,718

25,638,229 87.047,310 18.897,752 9,548,737 141,t32,028

$ 26,131,892 S 87,t73,887 $ 21,024,626 s 9.554J41 S 143,884,746

$ t,130,469 S 20,540 S 2,798,898 S s 3.949.907

22.0 t3.780 7 t.305.723 t4.925.285 9,850.542 I 18.095.330

s 23.144,249 $ 7t,326,263 $ r7.724,183 S 9. 850.542 $ r22.045.237

PREII,IISE S AIID E QTIIPMENT

Premises and equipment consisted of the tbllowing at December 3 l, 2016 and 2015

20r6 2015

Land
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total

$ 816,164
3,430,655

2,199,233

6,445,652
(2,874,222)

s 816,764
3,280,425

I ,981 ,068
6,078,251

(2,678,67 t)

24
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T E XAS ITT' RITAGE BANC SHAR-E S, INC. AI\D SI]BSIDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINA}ICIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and2015

4. PREMISES A-NID EQTIIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation expense

Proceeds on sale ofassets

Gross gain (loss)

5.

Balance at beginning of year

Forec losures

Additions to properly
Sales

lnterest bearing:

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certit'icates of deposit

2016 2015

s 324,936 $

s 78,000 $

$ 44,229 $

323,614

469,8 13

(208,89 t )

OTI{II,R REAL ESTATE

Transactions in other real estate for the years ended December 3 l, are summarized as follows:

2016 20t5

$ 333,476 $

ttt,497
4,345

(147,460\

3t6,233
39,965
t7,243
9 96s

Balance at end ofyear $ 301,858 $ 333,476

In 2016, the Company sold propefty for $134,190, which resulted in a loss of $13,270. In 2015, the
Company sold property for $40,432. which resulted in a gain of $467. Deferred -qains 

from previous
years'sales of $1,933 and $3.633 were recognized in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Since February
2015, some properry held in other real estate is leased to third parties on a month-to-morrth basis

resulting in rental income of S37J54 and $31,124 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

6. DEPOSITS

Deposits consisted of the following at December 31, 2016 and2015

2016 20t s

Non-interest bearing

Demand accounts $ 53,743,732 S 57,239.190

38,369,892
44,042,844
10,421,572

60 381 765

163,812,684 153,222.073

46,254,154
49,509,049
11,801,246

56,248,235

Total

25

$ 217,556,416 S 210,461,263



TEXAS IIERITAGE BAIICSHARES, TNC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and 2015

6. DEPOSITS(continued)

At December 31,2016, the schedule of maturities of certificates of deposits were as follows

2017

2018
2019
2020
2021

s 45,225272
9,510,850
1,058,927

339,798
113,388

s 563,489
t28,t2t

s 691,610

2016 201 5

Total $ 56,248,235

7. OTIIER BORROWINGS

The Company has an available line of credit atthe Federal Home Loan Bank for a maximum of 546.9
million as of December 31,,2016. The advances are secured by specific mortgage loans of the
Company. The amount of loans pledged as collateral under the agreements approximates $46.9 million
atDecember3l,20l6. AsofDecember3l,20l6.theCompanyhadnooutstandingadvances. Asof
December 31,2015, the Company Irad an outstanding balance of $5,000,000.

The Company has a federal fund line of credit fiom FrostNational Bank in the amount of $3,000.000
and with TIB for $2,000,000. As of December 31,2016 and 2015, the Compan,v had federal funds
purchased balance outstanding of $1,525,000 and $3,000,000, respectively.

Irr November2013, the Company borrowed $2,600,000 from the Leroy C. Jones Irrevocable Trust at
an interest rate of 4.50%. Principal and interest of $48,271 is due monthly until maturiry, November
2018. As of Decenrber 31,2016 and 2015, the Company had an outstanding balance with Leroy C.
Jones Irrevocable Trust of $691,610 and $ I ,586,95 l, respectively.

Aggregate maturities required on all borowings at December 3 l. 201 6 are as follows

2017

201 8

Interest paid on borrowings

26

$ 51,239 $ 100,530



TEXAS IIERITAGE BA}ICSIIARIS, INC. AIID SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2016 and 201 5

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFTT PLAN

The Company has a 401(k) retirement plan for all employees. The 401(k) PIan allows employees to
contribute to the plan subject to lnternal Revenue Code (IRC) limitations. The Company contributes a
matching amount up to 4o/o of each eligible employee's compensation. The Company contributed
matching contributions to the 401(k) plan as follows:

2016 201 5

Matching contributions s 56,840 $ 55,982

9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Effective November 1.2000, the Company started a deferred compensation plan for the former
Chairman of the Board/President. which is funded by an insurance policy with the Company named as

beneficiary. The cash surrender value of the insurance policies was 5700,519 and $680,096 as of
December 3 l, 201 6 and 201 5, respectively. The Company expensed the deferred fees and the amount
owed to the former Chairman of the Board/President is recorded in a liability account. The det-erred

compensation liabiliry" for20l6 and 2015 rvas $130,090 and $174,955, respectively, and is included in

other liabilities. Interest is periodically credited to the account. In June 2009, the Chairman of the
Board/President retired and deferred compensation payout commenced.

Minimum future compensation expense related to the deferred compensation liability is as follows

$ 48,827
53,078
28,185

Total $ 130,090

IO. EMPLOYMENTAGREEMENT

The Company entered into an employment agreement on June l, 201l, which entitles the President of
the Company to a base salary, incentive compensation and an automobile allowance. The employment
agreement entitles the President to participate in all other tiinge benefit plans rnaintained by the
Company. Either paft.v may terminate the employment agreement at any time with ninety days written
notice. If the President is terminated by the Company without cause, the Company is required to pay a
lump sum payment of $172,000 and unpaid vacation time or for any other entitled benefits.

20t7
201 8

2019
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TEXAS HERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3I 20l6and20l5

II. LEASES

The Company's leased space agreement is scheduled to end in 2017. Minimum future rental expense

related to the leased space on the non-cancellable operating lease agreements totals $4,938.

Rental expense was $4,938 and $6,095 for 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company did not receive
any rental income lbr 2016 and 2015, which has been reflected as an offset to occupallcy expense.

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK AIID
CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

In the normal course of business, the Company makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent tiabilities that are not presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The
commitments and contingent liabilities include various guarantees, commitments to extend credig and
standby letters of credit.

The Cornpany's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperflormance by the other parfy to the
financial instrument fbr comnritments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the

contractual amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does tbr on-balance-sheet instruments. The Company
does not anticipate any material losses as a result of the commitments.

2016 20t5

Unfunded loan commitments
Standby letters of credit

$ 26,181,267

$ 692,002
$ 20,'710,806

$ 885,884

Commitments to extend credit are agreetnents to [end to a customer as [ong as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may'require paynrent of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's credit worthiness on a case-bv-case basis.
The amount and type of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of
credit, varies and is based on management's credit evaluation of the counterparry.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third parly. Standby letters of credit generally have fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. The credit risk involved in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
The Company's policy for obtaining collateral, and the nature of such collateral, is essentially the same

as that involved in making commitments to extend credit.
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TEXAS IIERITAGE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SIIBSIDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2016 and 2015

13. REGT]LATORY MATTERS

Cash Reserve Requirements - The Bank rs required to rnaintain average cash reserve balances with
the Federal Reserve Bank or depository banks thereof.

2016 20r 5

Cash reserve requirement s 604,000 $ 647,000

Caoital Requirements - Banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
state and federal banking agencies. Capital adequacy guidelines and prompt corrective action
regulations, involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classitlcations are also subject
to qualitative judgments by regulators about components, risk weighting and other factors.

The Basel III Capital Rules became etTective for the Company on January 1,20t5 (subjectto a phase-

in period for certain provisions). Quantitative measures established by the Basel III Capital Rules to
ensure capital adequacy require the maintenance of minimum anrounts and ratios (set forth in the table
below) of Common Equit-v Tier I capital, Tier I capitaland Total capital(as detined in the regulations)
to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital to adjusted quarrerly average assets (as

defined).

The Company's Common Equity Tier I capital consists of comrnon stock and related paid-in capital,
net of treasury stock (if any), and retained earnings. [n connection with the adoption of the Basel III
Capital Rules, the election was made to opt-out of the requirement to include rrost components of
accumulated other comprehensive income in Common Equity Tier 1. Common Equiry Tier I for the
Company' is reduced by goodwill (if any) and other intangible assets (if any), net of associated deferred
tax Iiabilities (if any) and subject to transition provisions.

Tier I capital includes Common Equity Tier I capital and additional Tier I capital as allowed by
regulation. The Company did not have any additional Tier I capital beyond Conrmon Equitv Tier I as

of December 3 l. 2016.

Total capital includes Tier I capital and Tier 2 capital. Tier 2 capital for the Company includes a

permissible portion of tlre allowance tbr loan losses.

The Conrmon Equity Tier l, Tier I and Total capital ratios are calculated by dividing the respective
capital amounts by risk-weighted assets. Risk-weighted assets are calculated based on regulatory
requirements and include total assets, excluding goodwill (if any) and other intangible assets (if any),
allocated by risk weight category. and certain off-balance-sheet items, among other things. The
levera-9e ratio is calculated by dividing Tier I capital by adjusted quarterly average total assets, which
exclude goodwill (if any) and other intarrgible assets (if any), among other things.
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13. REGULATORYMATTERS(continued)

When fully phased in on January 1,2019, the Basel III Capital Rules will require the Company to
maintain (i) a minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.5%,
plus a 2.5Vo "capital conservation buffer" (which is added to the 4.5% Common Equitv Tier I capital
ratio as that buffler is phased in, effectively resulting in a minimum ratio of Common Equiry Tier I

capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 7.0%o upon full implementation), (ii) a minimum ratio of Tier
I capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.0%, plus the capital conservation buffer (which is added to
the 6.0Yo Tier I capital ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a minirnum Tier I

capital ratio of 8.5% upon full implementation), (iii) a minimum ratio of Total capital (that is, Tier I

plus Tier 2) to risk-weighted assets ol at least 8.0%, plus the capital conservation buffer (which is
added to the 8.0% total capital ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a minimum total
capital ratio of 10.5% upon full implementation) and (iv) a minimum leverage ratio of 4.0o%, calculated
as the ratio of Tier I capital to average quarterly assets.

The implementation of the capital conservation buffer began on JanuarJ 1,2016 at the 0.62502 level
and is being phased in over a four-year period (increasing by that amount on each subsequent January
1, until it reaches 2.5Yo on January 1, 2019). The Basel III Capital Rules also provide for a
"countercyclical capital buffer" that is applicable to only certain covered institutions and does not have
any current applicabilify to the Company.

The aforementioned capital conservation buffer is designed to absorb losses during periods of
economic stress. Banking institutions with a ratio of Common Equity Tier I capital to risk-weighted
assets above the minimum but below the conservation buffer (or below the combined capital
conservation butl-er and countercyclical capital buffer, when the latter is applied) will face constraints
on dividends, equity repurchases and compensation based on the amount of the shortfall.

The following table presents actual and required capital ratios as of December 31, 2016 for the
Company under the Basel III Capital Rules. The minimum required capital amounts presented include
the rninirnurn required capital levels as of December 31,2016 based on the phase-in provisions of the
Basel Ill Capital Rules and the minimum required capital levels as of January 1,2019 when the Basel
III Capital Rules have been fully phased-in. Capital levels required to be considered well capitalized
are based upon prompt corrective action regulations, as amended to reflect the changes under the Basel
Itl CapitalRules.

Minimunr Capital Minimum Capital Required to be

Actual ff::l'ii.f.1Jil 
"'ffi"#'?t:L:'ir. 

'"3"'oT[1,.1'"
Anrount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amouut Ratio

.{s of December 31, 2016

Comnron Equity f ier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)

Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assetsl

Total Capital
(to Risk-Wei ghted Assets)

Tier I Capital
(to Avcrage .Assets)

11.570/o S 8,149,164

14.51o/o $ 10,534,285

15.360/o S 13,712,651

9.48"/" S 9,775,307

30

5.125"/" S il,130,565

6.625y" $ 13,5t5,687

8.6250/" S 16,69J.662

4.000% $ 9,775,J07

7 .000/o s 10,J35,525

E.50% S t2,720,646

I0.50% 5 15,898,725

4.00"/" $ l2,2t9,lJJ

s 2J,161,477

s 23,167,477

s 24,420,442

s 23,t67,477

6.50%

8.00%

10.00Y"

s.00%
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13. REGULATORYMATTERS (continued)

The follorving table presents actual and required capital ratios as of December 31, 2015 for the
Company under the regulatory capital rules tlren in effect.

Acrual
Amount

Minimunr Capital
Required Basel III
Phase-ln Schedule
Amount RatioRario

r5 9r% $

r5.9r% $

r6 68% $

9 37o/o $

Minimum Capital Required ro be

Required Basel III Considered Well
Fully Phase-ln Schedule Capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratir>

As of December 3 t,20t5

Common Equity Tier t Capiral
(to Risk-Weighted Assers) S 22,291,228

Tier I Capiml
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) S 22.291.128

Total Capital

1to Risk-Weighred Assets) S 23.3 7 I ,689

Tier I Capital

(to Average Assets) $ 22,291,228

6,304,873

8.406,19'1

I r,209,443

9,-s t5,999

4 s0%

600%

8 00%

4 00%

9,807,580

r 1,909,204

t4.'712,394

9,5 r 5,999

'1 00o/o $

8.50% S

l0 509/o $

4.00o/o S

9, I 07,03 8

I 1,208.663

I 4,0 r r,804

r r,894,999

6.s0%

8.00%

l0 00%

5.00%

As of December 31,2016, capital levels at the Company exceed all capital adequacy requirements
under the Basel III Capital Rules on a fully phased-in basis. Based on the ratios presented above.
capital levels as of December 31, 2016 at the Company exceed the minimum levels necessary to be
considered "well capitalized."

The Company is subject to the regulatory capital requirements administered by the Office of the
Comptroller.of the Currency ("OCC") and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC").
Regulatory authorities can initiate ceftain mandatory actions if the Company fails to meet the minimum
capital requirements, rvhich could have a direct material effect on our financial statements.
Management believes, as of Decerlber 31, 2016, that the Company meets all capital adequacy
requirements to rvhich it is subject.

14. RISTRICTIONS ON DIVIDENDS

The Bank, as aNational Bank, is subject to the dividend restrictions set forth by the Comptroller of the
Currency. Under such restrictions, the Bank may not, without the prior approval of the Comptroller of
the Currency. declare dividends in excess of the sum of the currentyear's net income plus the retained
net income (as defined in the regulations) fi'om the prior two years. The additional dividends as of
December 31, 2016 that the Bank could declare, without the approval of the Comptroller of the
Currency, were approxirnately $4,000,000. Actual dividends available to be distributed are also
subject to the Bank maintaining required regulatory capital ratios.
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NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and 20 t5

15. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSTIRES

The authoritative guidance on fair value measurernents defines fair value as the price that would be

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. A tair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transt-er the
liabiliry occurs in the principal market fbr the asset or tiability or, in the absence of a principal market.
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The price in the principal (or most
advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be adjusted for
transaction costs. An orderly transaction is a transaction that assumes exposure to the market for a

period prior to the measurement date to allorv for marketing activities that are usual and customary for
transactions involving such assets and liabilities: it is not a forced transaction. Market participants are

buyers and sellers in the principal market that are (i) independent, (ii) knowledgeable. (iii) able to
transact and (iv) willing to transact.

The authoritative guidance on fair value measurements requires the use of valuation techniques that are
consistent with the market approach. the income approach and/or the cost approach. The market
approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets and liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to
convert future arnounts. such as cash flows or earnings, to a single present anlount on a discounted
basis. The cost approach is based on the amount that curreutly would be required to replace the service
capacitv of an asset (replacement costs). Valuation techniques should be consistently apptied. Inputs
to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset

or liability. lnputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assunrptions market parlicipants
would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from independent
sources, or unobservable. meaning those that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about tlre
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liabiliqv developed based on the best
information available in the circunrstances. In that regard. the guidance establishes a fair value
hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets tbr
identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows

Level I Inputs - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the reporling entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inrruts - lnputs other than quoted prices included in Leve] I that are observable tbr the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for sir-nilar assets or
liabilities in active markets. quoted prices for identical or similal assets or liabilities in markets that
are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable tbr the asset or tiabiliry (tbr
example, interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks and default
rates) or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

Level 3 Innuts - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entiry's own assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.
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15. FAIR VALTIE DISCLOSIIRES (continued)

In general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market
prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use, as

inputs, observable market-based parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that
financial instruments are recorded at fair value. While management believes the Company's valuation
methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
niethodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain t'inancial instruments could result
in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date. A description of the valuation methodologies
used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value. as well as the general classification of such
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis
include the following:

Securities Available-for-Sale - Securities classif-red as available fbr sale are reported at fair value
utilizing Level2 inputs. For these securities, the Company obtains fair value measurements from
an independent pricing service. The fair value measurements consider observable data that nray
include dealer quotes, nrarket spreads, cash flows, the U. S. Treasury yield curve. [ive trading
levels, trade execution data, market consensus prepayments speeds. credit information and the
bond's tenns and conditions, among other things.

Imrraired Loans - A loan may be considered impaired when it is determined that it is probable
that payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of
the loan agreement. Once a loan is identitled as individually impaired. management measures for
impainnent using the practical expedients permitted by applicable authoritative accounting
guidance, at the thir value of the loans collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. If a loan is
determined to be collateral dependent. the fairvalue of the collateral is determined by independent
appraisals or valuations adjusted for costs related to the liquidation of the collateral and are
classified as Level 3.

The following table summarizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized
to measure fair value:

Level 1

Inputs
Level 2
Inputs

Level 3

lnputs
Total Fair

Value

December 31, 2016

Mortgage-backed securities
State and political subdivisions

December 31,2015

Mortgage-backed securi t ies

State and political subdivisions

$

$

24,282,205 S

54,956,243

s 20,9s8,934 $

56,253,949

s 21,282,205
54,956,243

$ 20,958,934
56,253,949

JJ
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15. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSIIRES (continued)

Certain t'inancial assets are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis; that is, the instruments are

not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain
circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment).

The following table summarizes t'inancial assets measured at fair value on a non-recuring basis,
segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair
value:

Level 1

Inputs
Level2
Inputs

Level 3

lnputs
Total Fair

Value

December 31,2016

Lnpaired loans

December 3 l, 2015

hnpaired loans $ t8.9lt $ 18,911

During the years ended December 31,2016 and 2015, ceftain impaired loans u,ere remeasured and
reported at fair value through a specific valuation allowance allocation of the alloviance for loan losses

based upon the fair value of the underlying collateral based on collateral valuations utilizing Level 3

valuation inputs.

2016 2015

$$$

s

$

$

Carrying value of impaired loans

Specific valuation allowance allocations

Fair value of inrpaired loans

20.954
(2.043)

$ $ 18.91 I

Non-Financial Assets and Non-Financial Liabilities

Certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recuring basis
include the following:

Other Real Estate - Certain foreclosed properties, upon initial recognition and subsequent
remeasurement were valued and reported at fair value through charge-offs to the allowance for
loan losses and writedowns included in current period earnings. The fair value of such other real
estate owned, upon initial recognition and subsequent remeasurement, is estimated utilizing Level
3 inputs. Fair values rvere based primarily on third parry" appraisals; however, based on the current
economic conditions, comparative sales data typically used in the appraisals rnay be unavailable or
more subjective due to the lack of real estate market activity. See Note 5. for the activit-v that
occumed in Other Real Estate for the years ended December 3 I . 201 6 and 20 15.

S 49,209 $
(49,209)
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15. FAIR VALTIE DISCLOSURES (continued)

The following table summarizes non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring and non-recurring basis. segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair'
value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

Level I
Inputs

Level 2
Inputs

Level 3

Inputs
Total Fair

Value

December 31,2016

Other real estate

December 31, 2015

Other real estate

s 301,858 $ 301,858

$ s 333,476 $ 333,416

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

fhe Conrpany is required under current authoritative guidance to disclose the estimated fair value of its
financial instrument assets and tiabilities including those subject to the requirements discussed above.
For the Company, as for most financial institutions, substantially all of its assets and liabilities are

considered financial instruments as det'ined. Many of the Company's financial instruments. however,
lack an available trading market as characterized by a willing buyer and willing seller engaging in an

exchange transaction.

The estimated fair value amounts of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using
available market intbrnration and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable
judgment is required to interpret data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates
presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current
market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have
a rnaterial effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

In addition, reasonable comparability betrveen financial institutions may not be likely due to the wide
range of permined valuation techniques and numerous estimates that must be made given the absence
of active secondarl' nrarkets for many of the financial instruments. This lack of uniform valuation
rnethodologies also introduces a greater degree of subjectiviry to these estimated fair values.

Financial instruments ,*'ith stated maturities and t'ixed rates have been valued using a present value
discounted cash flow with a discount rate approximating current market for similar assets and

liabilities. Financial instrument assets with variable rates and financial instrument liabilities with no
stated maturities have an estimated fair value equal to both the amount payable on demand and the
carrying value.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments w'ith a relatively short period of time betrveen their
ori-gination zurd their expected realization approximate fair vaIue.

$$

$
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15. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSLIRf,S (continued)

The carrying value and the estimated fair value of the Company's contractual off-balance-sheet
unfunded lines of credit, loan commitments and letters of credit, which are generally priced at market
at the time of funding. are not material.

The estimated fair values and carrying values of all financial instruments under current authoritative
guidance at December 3l were as follows:

2016 2015

Carrying
Amounts

Estimated
Fair

Value
Carrying
Amounts

Estimated

Fair
Value

Financial Assets:

Level 2 Inputs:
Cash and cash equivalents

Time deposits

S ec urities avai lab le-for-sal e

Securities held-to-maturity
Accrued interest receivable

Cash value of life insurance

Level 3 Inputs:
Loans, net

Loans held-for-sale

Financial Liabilities:

Level 2 Inout,s:

Deposits

Accrued interest payable

Borrowings

s 7,862,282 $
248,000

79,238,418

4,657,964
1,378,866

700,519

6,858.004 S

746,125

77.212,883

22,3t0,792
1,461,940

680,096

s r42,63r,781 $ 143,508,000 t trl:,z1lr,,rrrr\

7,862,282 $

248,000

79,238,418

4,619,749

1,378,866

700,519

6.858,004

746.725

17.2t2.883
21,868,209

1,461,910

680,096

s t22,210.000

6,661,000

$ 217,556,4t6
3g,g7g

2,216,610

s 218,006,000

38,978

2,216,610

s 210,461,263

4 1,390

9,596,95 [

s 210,702,000

41.390

9,586,95 t

I6. LITIGATION

The Company is parly to litigation arising in the normal course of business. Management after
consultation with legal counsel, believes that the liabilities, if any, arising from such litigation and
claims will not be material to the Company's financial position.
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17. SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

The Conrpany has performed a review of subsequent events through the date of the opinion, which is

the date the financial statements were available for issuance, and concludes there were no events or
transactions occurring during this period that required recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements. Any events occurring after this date have not been factored into the financial statements

being presented.

18. RECENTLY ISSUED AUTHORITATTVE GUIDANCE

ASU 2015-01, "Income Statement - Extraordinary and Urutsual ltems (Subtopic 225-20) - Simplifuing
Income Stalentent Presentalion by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary ltems. " ASU 2015-01
elirninates ftom U.S. GAAP the concept of extraordinary items, which, anrong other things, required an

entity to segregate extraordinary items considered to be unusual and infrequent from the results of
ordinary operations and shorv the item separately in the income statement, net of tax, after income from
continuing operations. The amendment was effective for annual and interim reporling periods

beginning after December 15,2015. The amendment did not have a significant impact on the

Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2015-02, "Consolidalion (Topic 810) - Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis. " ASU 20t5-
02 implements changes to both the variable interest consolidation model and the voting interest
consolidation model. ASU 2015-02 (i) eliminates certain criteria that must be met rvhen determining
when t'ees paid to a decision maker or service provider do not represent a variable interest, (ii) amends

the criteria for determining whether a limited partnership is a variable interest entiry and (iii) eliminates
the presumption that a general partner controls a limited partnership in the voting model. The

amendment was effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginn ing after December | 5, 20 I 5.

The amendment did not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2015-03, "lnterest - Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) - SimpliJyittg the Presentation oJ'

Debt Lssuance Costs." ASU 2015-03 requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt
liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt
Iiability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement guidance for debt issuance

costs are not aflected by the amendments in ASU 2015-03. The amendment was effective for annual
and interim reporting periods beginning after December [5,2015. The amendment did not have a
significant impact on the Cornpany's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2015-05, "lntangible.s - Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-10) -
Customer's Accounting for Fees Paicl in a Cloud Computing Arrangemenl. " ASU 201 5-05 addresses

accounting for fees paid by a customer in cloud computing arrangements such as (i) software as a
service, (ii) platform as a service, (iii) infrastructure as a service and (iv) other similar hosting
amangements. ASU 2015-05 provides guidance to customers about whether a cloud computing
arrangement includes a softrvare license. If a cloud computing anangement includes a software
license. then the customer slrould account for the software license element of the arrangement
consistent u'ith the acquisition of other software licenses.
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18. RECENTLY ISSUED AUTHORITATIVE GUIDAIICE (continued)

If a cloud conrputing arrangement does not include a software license, the customer should account for
the anangement as a service contract. The arnendment was effective for annual and interim reporting
periods beginning after Decenrber 15,2015. The amendment did not have a significant impact on the

Company's consol idated fi nancial statements.

ASU 2015-15, "Interest - Intputation o/ Interest (Subtopic 835-30) - Presentation and Subsequent

Measurement of Debt Is.suance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Aruangements. Amendments to

SEC Paragraphs Pursuent to StafJ'Announcement at Jtme 18, 2015 EITF Meeting." ASU 2015-15
adds SEC paragraphs pursuant to an SEC Staff Announcement that given the absence of authoritative
guidance within ASU 2015-03 for debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements, the SEC

staff would not object to an entity def'en'ing and presenting debt issuance costs as an asset and

subsequently amortizing the defered debt issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-of-credit
arrangement, regardless of whether there are any outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit
arrangement. The anrendment rvas effective for annual and interim repofting periods beginning after
December 15, 2015. The amendment did not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

ASU 2015-16, "Bustness Comhincttions (Topic 805) - Sirnplifying the Accountingfor Measurement-
Period Adjustments." ASU 2015-16 requires that adjustments to provisional amounts that are

identified during the measurement period of a business combination be recognized in the reporting
period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. Furthermore, the income statement effects of
such adjustrnents, if any. must be calculated as if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition
date. Any amounts that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustnent to
the provisional amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date should be recorded in curent-
period earnings. Under previous guidance, adjustments to provisional amounts identified during the

measurement period are to be recognized retrospectively. The amendment will be effective for fiscal
years beginning after Decenrber 15,2016 and is not expected to have a signiticant impact on the

Conrpany's consolidated financiaI statements.

ASU 2016-01, "Financial htstrtonents - A,erall (Subtopic 825-101. Recognition qnd Meusurement oJ'

Finctncial Assets and Financial Liabilities." ASLI 2016-1, among other things, (i) requires equiry
investments, with certain exceptions, to be measured at fair value with changes in tair value recognized
in net incorne, (ii) sirnplifies the irnpairment assessment of equity investments without readily
determirrable fhir values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment, (iii) eliminates
the requirement for public business entities to disclose the nrethods and significant assumptions used to
estimate the fair value that is required to be disclosed for financial instrunrents measured at amoftized
cost on the balance sheet. (iv) requires public business entities to use the exit price notion when
measuring the fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes, (v) requires an entiry' to
present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value of a
liabiliry" rcsulting from a change in the instu'ument-specific credit risk when the entiry has elected to
measure the liability at fair value in accordance with the fair value option fbr financial instrurnents, (vi)
requires separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and

form of financial asset on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to the financial statements and
(viii) clarifies that an entity should evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset

related to avai lable-for-sale.
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18. RECENTLY ISSIIED AUTHORITATM GUIDAI\CE (continued)

The amendments will be eff'ective tbr fiscal years beginning after December 15,2018 and are not
expected to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 8121." ASU 2016-02 will, anrong other things, require lessees to
recognize a lease liabiliry, which is a lessee's obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease,

measured on a discounted basis; and a right-of-use asset, vvhich is an asset tJrat represents the lessee's

right to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term. ASU 2016-02 does not
significantly change lease accounting requirements applicable to lessors, however, certain changes
were made to align, where necessary, lessor accounting with the lessee accounting model and ISC
Topic 606, "Revenue Jrom Contracts with Customers." The amendment will be effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15.2019 and is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2016-05"Derivatiyes and Hedging (Topic 815) Effect of Derivcttive Controct Novations on
Existing Hedge ,4ccounting Relcttionships. " ASU 201 6-05 clariJies that a change in the counterparty to
a derivative instrument that has been designated as the hedging instrurnent under ASC Topic 815 does
not, in and of itself, require dedesignation of that hedging relationship provided that all other hedge
accounting criteria continue to be met. The amendment rvill be effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15,201'7 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's
consol idated flnancial statements.

ASU 2016-07, "Investments - Equity Method and Joint Venttres (Topic 323). SimpliJying the
Transition to the Equity Method of Accounting." The amendments affect all entities that lrave an

investment that becomes qualified fbr the equiry method of accounting as a result of an increase in the
level ofownershipinterestordegreeofinfluence. ASU2016-07 simplifiesthetransitiontotheequiry
method of accounting by eliminating retroactive adjustment of the inrrestment rvhen an investment
qualifies for use of the equity method. among other things. The amendment will be eft'ective for f.iscal

y'ears beginning after December Li,2016 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company' s consolidated t'inanc ial statements.

ASU 2016-08, "Reyenue from Contracts with Cttstomers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent
Considerations (Reporting Reverurc Gross versus Net)." ASU 2016-08 rvas issued to clarifu certain
principal versus agent considerations within the implementation guidance of ISC Topic 606, "Revenue

/rom Contracls with Customers. " The amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning after
December I5,2018 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated
financial staternents.

ASU 2016-09, "Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 7lB): Improvemenls to Employee Share-
Based Payment Accounling. " Under ASU 2016-09 all excess tax benefits and ta-x detlciencies related
to share-based payment awards should be recognized as income tax expense or benefit in the incorne
statement during the period in which thev occur. Previously, such anrounts were recorded in the pool
of excess tax benefits included in additional paid-in capital, if such pool was avallable.
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18. RECENTLY ISSIIED AUTHORITATIVE GUIDANCE (continued)

Because excess tax benefits are no longer recognized in additional paid-in capital, the assumed
proceeds from applying the treasury stock method when computing earnings per share should exclude
the amount of excess ta,r benefits that would have previously been recognized in additional paid-in
capital. Additionally. excess tax benefits should be classified along with other income tax cash flows
as au operating activity rather than a financing activiry, as was previously the case. ASU 2016-09 also
provldes that an entity can malie an entity-wide accounting policy election to either estimate the
number of awards that are expected to vest (current GAAP) or account for forfeitures when they occur.
ASU 2016-09 changes the threshold to qualif, for equir-n- classification (rather than as a liability) to
permit withholding up to the ma.ximum statutory tax rates (rather than the mininrum as was previously
the case) in the applicable jurisdictions. The amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning
after December 15,2017 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's
conso lidated fi nanc ial statements.

ASU 2016-10, "Revenue from Contracts with Cuslomers (Topic 606); Identifuing Performance
Obligations and Licensing." ASU 2016-10 was issued to clarif,- ASC Topic 606, "Revenue from
Contracts tvith Customers" related to (i) identifliing perforrnance obligations; and (ii) the licensing
inrplementation guidance. The amendment will be effective fbr annual periods beginning after
Decernber 15,2018 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

ASU 2016-13, "Financial Instrumenls - Credit Iosses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instrunents." ASU 2016-13 requires the nleasurement of all expected credit losses for
financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and
reasonable and supporlable tbrecasts and requires enhanced disclosures related to the significant
estimates and judgments used in estinrating credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting
standards of an organization's portfblio. In addition, ASU 2016-13 amends the accounting for credit
losses on available-tbr-sale debt securities and purchased financial assets with credit deterioration. The
amendment will be eft'ective for flscal years beginning after December 15,2020 and is erpected to
have a significant impact on tlre Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2016-15, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) - Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and
Cash Payments." ASU 2016-15 provides guidance related to certain cash flow issues in order to
reduce the current and potential future diversitv in practice. The amendment rvill be eft'ective for fiscal
years beginning after Decenrber 15,2018 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2016-16, "Income Tares (Topic 740) - In*a-Entity Transfers oJ'Assets Other Than lnventory."
ASU 2016-16 provides guidance stating that an entity should recognize the income Lax consequences
of an intra-entity transf'er of an asset other than inventory when the transfer occurs. The amendment
will be etTective tbr annual periods beginning after December [5,2018 and is not expected to have a

significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

40



TEXAS HERITAGE BA}{CSIIARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3l 2016 and,2015

18. RECENTLY ISSUED AII'TIIORITATM GUIDAITCE (continued)

ASU 2016-18, "Statement of Cash Flows (Iopic 230) - Resrricted Cash." ASU 2016-18 requires that a
statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and
amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts
generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and
cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on
the statement of cash flows. The amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15,2018 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

ASU 2017-01, "Business Comhinations (Topic 805) - Clarifying the Definition of a Business. " ASU
2017-01 clarifies the det-rnition and provides a more robust framework to use in determining when a set
of assets and activities constinrtes a business. ASU 2017-01 is intended to provide guidance when
evaluating w'hether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or
businesses. The amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,2018
and is not expected to have a significant impact on tle Company's consolidated financial statements.
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TEXAS HERITAGE BANC SIIARBS, INC. AIID SUBSTDIARY

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SI{T,ET

December 3l 20t6

Texas Fleritage

Bancshares. [nc.

llondo
National

Bank Eliminations
Consolidated

Balance

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equiva.lens

Cash and due from banks

Total cash and cash equivalents

Time deposis
Securities av ai lable- for-sale,

at estimated market value
Securicies held+o-maurity, at cost

Loarr. net

lnvestnent in subsidiary
Premises and equipment, net

Accrued interest receivable
Other real estate owned net

Cash surrender value of lil'e insurance

Goodwill
Other assets

Totel assets

LLABILITIES .{ND SIIARf,HO LDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

Non-interest bearing
Interest bearing

Total deposis

Accrued interest payable

Borrowings
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders' Equity
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Total shareholden' equity

67 S 7,862.282 $ (67) S 1,862,282s
67 7.862.282

248,000

79,238,448
4,657,8fl

142.63 1,781

(6t1 7,862,282

248,000

79,238,M8
.1,657,864

142,631,781

22,516,564 (22.5'76.s64)
3,571,430
r,378,866

3 0l ,858
700,5 l9
t20,416

t,404,045

3571.430
1J7E,866

301,858
700,519
l20"ll6

I,404,045

s 22.s16.631 $ 2.t2.u5.509 S (22.576.63r) S 242.115.509

$ s 53,743,799
r 63,8 r 2.684

$ (67) $ 53,7.13,732

153,8r2,684
2 l 7.556.483 (61\ 217,556,416

69r,610
38,978

I,525,000
4 I 8.484

38,978
2,216,610

418,484
691,610 219.538.945 (67) 220.230.488

783,000
3.005,020

r 8,808,330
(71 r.329)

8 12,153

s.474.364
I 7,00 1,376

(7 r r,329)

(8r 2.153)
(5,4',74.364)

( l 7,00 r,376)
711,329

783,000

3,005,020
18,808,330

(711J29)
2 I ,885.021 22,576,564 (22-576,564\ 21,885.021

Total liabilities rnd shareholders' cquity s 22.576.631 $ 242.115._i09 $ (22.576.631) S 2.t2,1r5509

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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TEXAS HT'.RITAGE BANC SIIARE S, INC. AIID SI.IBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31.2016

Texas Heritage
Bancshares, Inc.

Hondo
National

Bank Eliminations
Consolidated

Balance

TNTEREST INCONIE
Loans, including fees

lnvestrnent securi ties:

Taxable
Tax-exempt

Federal funds sold

Other
Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
Borrowings

Total interest expense

IIET INTEREST INCON{E

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NON-INTEREST INCOMI
Div idends from subsidialies
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Service charges on deposit accounts

Gain on sale ofsecurities
Gain on sale of assets

Other
Total non-interest income

NON-INTEREST EXPf,NSE
Salaries, wages and benetis
Occupancy and equipment
Loss on sale ofother real estate

Other
Total non-interest expense

INCONTE BEFORE INCONTE T.T\ES

ST.A.TE INCOME T.A.\ EXPENSE

NET INCONTE

$ $ 6,966,079 $

7M,653
I ,30 1,083

74.577
6.146

s 6,966,079

704,653
1J01,083

74,517
6,1{6

9.052.538 9.052.538

880,472
6,609

880,472

51r39,t4,630

44,630

(44,630)

887,08 r 93r.7ll

8, I 65.457

240.000

t,120,827

240,000

(44.630) 7,92s,4s7 7.880.827

2,l_\3,62r
876.249

(2,rs3,621)
(876.219)

329,535
157,587

44,229

538,t2'7

329,535
157,5E7

44,229
s38,r27

3.029.8'70 r.069,478 (3.02e.870) 1,069,478

3,174,t69
't74.532

ll.3i7
2-003,227

3,174,r69
774,532

I1,337
2,003,227

5.963,265 5,963,265

2.985.240 3.03 1,670

1.800

(3,029.870) 2,987,040

1,800

s, s 3.029.870 s (3.029.870) s 2.98-5.2-t0

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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